formNo. 10-300 REV. (8/77)

UNITED STATES DEPA RTFVQJT OF THE INTERIOR

575 22 / 5

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

' 7
SR DL L - {’

. INVENTORY -- NOMINATICN FORM

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS
TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS

EUNAME

HISTORIC Hamilton family estate

“WmR“NM°”uDOO block of Pine Street

ELOCATIQQ% 41 Baltimore Avenue,

STREET & NUMBER

L4ooo,02,04,06,08,10,12,14,16,18 Pine Street

—NOT FOR PUBLICATION

ﬁm Tow CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
: h1lade1ph1a _ VICINITY OF
TATE . ) CODE COUNTY CODE
ennsylvania
EH CLASSIFICATION
_CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
XDISTRICT —PUBLIC EOCCUPIED © —AGRICULTURE —~MUSEUM
—BUILDINGI(S) JLPRIVATE ] _UNOCCU?IED —COMMERCIAL —PARK
_ —STRUCTURE —BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS ~-EDUCATIONAL )_(PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—-SITE PUBLIC ACQUlSI_TlON ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
. : —OBJECT . —INPROCESS - Z-YES: RESTRICTED —GOVERNMENT —SCIENTIFIC
——BEING CONSIDERED — YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL —TRANSPORTATION
—NO ~—MILITARY " ._OTHER:
fH OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME . ’
. See attached list of owners
STREET & NUMBER
Pr
CTY.TOWN , STATE m—
— VICINITY OF
ELOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION .
COURTHOUSE,
. REGISTRY QF DEEDS,ETC. Phlladelphla Clty Hall
STREET & NUMBER :
Broad and Market Streets - /
lTY TOWN STATE
niladelphia Pennsylvania
BREPRE SENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TiTLE : .. i
materials in the files of PhilADELPHIA HISTORICAL COMMISSION
- v DAT,
1561

—FEDERAL __STATE

—COUNTY X_{0OCAL

' DEPOSITORY FOR .
survev Recoros Philadelphia Historical Commission

CITY. TOWN

Philadelphia

STATE PAa

e vgpreeze T

vt ==



DESCRIPTION ® L |

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE

-

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

C
’ : _-EXCELLENT _DETERIORATED ) 'x_.UNALTERED J£.C)RlGlNAL SITE
R —GO0D —RUINS x_.ALTERE D : -MOVED DATE.
. —FAIR —UNEXPOSED
. 3
}
i

Hamilton Estate District 4000 block of Pine Street

Until 1851 the property between LOth and Ljlst streets, Baltimore
Avenue and Pine Street remained in the hands of the heirs of William
Hamilton, the great 18th century proprietor of much of what is now
called West Philadelphia. At that time, the various heirs were found
in England and the United States and the block was assembled as a
single property by John E. Newman for Nathaniel B. Browne who sald
; the block to Philadelphia merchant Jacob Knorr, a descendent of the
] builder of the Chew mansion Cliveden in Germantown. Knorr in turn
broke the block into house lots in 1852 and sold the eastern and
wesbtern portions subject to the condition that "substantial stone or
brick buildings" be erected. He retained, presumably for his own -
use a large property in the middle with frontages on both Pine Street
and Baltimore Avenue. :
Of particular interest are the later land transactiong, all of
which involved an owner in the building trades. The eastern end
: was acquired in 1852 by Thomas Allen, a plasterer, the middle por-
i tion in 1863 by Edwin Rafsnyder, a carpenter builder and a member
i - of a family whose members were generally in the building trades,
i and the western piece was owned in 1860 by James D. Shaw who was var-
. iously listed as a plasterer and a builder. Presumably each hsad
‘ a-role in the design process, accounting for the stylistic differences
from one project to the next.
The earliest houses were erected at the east end of the block by
plasterer Thomas Allen. A handsome stuccoed symmetrical Italianate
villa was-built at 400 South 4@st Street. It was a typical cen- ‘Y\
ter hall plan villa with a heavy cornice and a large belvedere
: giving the ‘facade its distinction. The next house. 4000 Pine Street,
: was sold by Allen to Philip Duffy in 1859 but was complete enough
; in 1855 for'an insurance survey to describe it as "a fancy brick dwellin
¢ rough cast on the exterior..." The Duffy house is cruciform in plan
i with a projecting front wing containing the parlor surrounded on three
: sides by a spacious porch ( altered, C. 1910 to meet turn of the cen-
; tury classical taste); the cross bar contained entrance and a stair
‘ on one side and the dining room on the other. In the rear were the
kitchen and the servant spaces of the house. Paired brackets, window
detai%f and the plan suggest Philadelphia archite2t S amuel Sloan,
whom Harold Cooledge fin s -working in the region, for Thomas Allen
and was presumably responsible for 400 S. 4O0th and 4000 and 4002 Pine.
The last of the houses erected in the 1850s is now numbered 002
and was constructed between 1852 when the property was acquired by
- merchant Thomas White and prior to 1856 when it was sold to widow
Louisa Rohr. Sitting back on its high lawn, 002 is an exceptionally
gracious three story Italianate residence, with a subtle projection
that accentuates the symmetry while denoting the entrance. Three hor-
‘ izontal decorative zones give added interest to the facade - on the
. first floor a lacy cast iron porch, on the second floor, bracketed,
' ornamental window heads, and crowning the whole, a heavy bracketed
cornice. Internal finishes have been largely retained from the Rohr
days. ‘
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The next group of houses to be erected were those at the western end
of the property, on the land acquired by John C. Mitchell. He sold

the property to James D. Shaw a builder who presumably deiigned the
houses numbered 4008,10,12,14,16,18 on Pine Street and 403 and C5 on
South llst Street. Of particular note is the compositional system

that links the Pine Street houses beyond the usual devices of material,
decorative detail and form. Here a central symmetrical flat roofed
double Italianate villa is flanked by double villas, each of which is
flat roofed on the outer units and gable roofed on the unit nearest

to the center. The result is an overall symmetry that is uncommon

in Philadelphia suburban development.

As befits their less pretentious scale and finish, for examples the
jig sawed gingerbread decorations of the porches, the interiQrs are
relatively plain with standardized newel posts and balusters, and
plain fireplaces. Because their scale has been attractive to sev-
eral generations, these have remained mostly single family houses,

and as a result have been modernized as tastes changed. For exam-
ple, LOll was given some colonial revival alterations, columned porch,
columned fireplaces, and a heavy mahogany door around 1908, and then
in the 1930s received a handsome Mercer tile library fireplace. Simi-
larly 4018 Pine Street was .embellished with an oval, baroque framed
window by architects Cope and Stewardson who were then engaged in de-
signing the buildings of .the neighboring University of Pennsylvania.
These are all stuccoed houses, with simple wood exterior trim, brackets,
and large front porches. .

The last of the double houses to be erected were L4OOL and 06 on Pine
Street, and an identical double to the south, fronting on Baltimore
Avenue. These towered brownstone residences with "stick style"
porches were built on the land which Jacob Knorr had held until it was
sold at a sheriff's sale to Clarence H., Clark in 1861. He in turn
transferred the land to Edwin Rafsnyder who built the houses in 1863-l.
Marble fireplaces, dark stained balusters and massive newel posts,

and heavy moldings around doors and windows give a feeling of sub-
stance and quality to these houses and mark the transitien from the
unpretentious pre Civil War villas to the greater elaboration, con-
spicuous cost and individualism of post war Victorian design,
Together, these house form a unified suburban streetscape, preserving
the sense of the street when West Philadelphia was an affluent mid-
dle class suburb.

Buildings contributing to the quality of the district:

1. 400 South [j0th Street - Italianate house, c. 1853; altered into
a nursing home, with front porch removed, and front and side
additions. (Part of district in that it survives, but not essential’
to the street scape in that it fronts on Oth Street).”
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2. 4000 Pine Street, 3 story criciform plan house with Italianate bay,
round window heads, heavy cornice; altered with a major dormitory
rear wing added in 1927 by architect Roy Larson. Front c. 1855. view no. 1
3. 4002 Pine Street, 3 story center hall Italianate single house,. no
significant alterations from the street. c. 1856 view no.2
L. L4OO4-06 Towered brownstone, double house, essentially intact on view no. 2
street front, c¢. 1863-4. A similar group adjoins to the rear at
5. 4039-41 Baltimore Avenue. The Baltimore Avenue and Pine Street houses
share a common rear yard and landscaping. c. 1863-L.- view no, ©
6. L008-10 Pine Street. Asymmetrical Italianate double house with simple
square post porch, jigsawed ornament and bracketed dornice. Little |
; altered on street front. c. 1860. : Viey 5o, L
7. 4012-1ly Pine Street. Symmetrical Italiante double house, 4012 with
original square posts and jigsawed ornament; LOll with colonial re-
vival porch. c. 1860. . vigwsng.
, 8, 4016-18 Pine Street. ..Asymmetrical Italianate double house with ,
simple square posts for porch; most of jigsawed ornament removed.Vingn?. ¢

. c. 1860.

|
| 9. 4,03-5 South l1st Street, Symmetrical Italianate double house, with
|
[}

(2l

original square post supported porch removed, c. 1860, and LOS5 de-
molished in this century.

Buildings not contributing to the district:

None

Known architects : 400 Soﬁth 4Oth, 4000 Pine and 4002 Pine were probably
the work of Samuel Sloan, who alss designed the house at 400 South 4lst
Street as well as other houses in the University of Pennsylvania area,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The 4000 block of Pine Street forms one of the handsomest and best
preserved mid 19th century suburban streetscapes of Philadelphia.
As an ensemble it recalls the years when West Philadelphia was the
place of residence of many of the city's financial, social and pro-
fessional elite. Deéspite the potential variety presented by three
separate groups of houses, the spacing of the buildings, the under-
lying staccato rhythm of openings and the common materials of
stucco and masonry, and the repeated motifs of porches, and brack-
eted cornices gives a complex unity to the block g2ll too rarely encoun-
tered in American suburban developments.,
Not only does the street survive intact, but the houses that are
its constituent parts are themselves of notes 4000, LOO2, LooL-6,
, being fine examples of their types and 4008 - 18 forming an impor-
) tant composition. Each of the buildings is in sound con ition, and
. as more and more come into single ownership, more can be incorpor-
sted into the unified open space that links the rear yards..
Third, the LOOO block of Pine Street is a response ‘to the mid 19th
century fashion of the suburban house promulgated by Andrew Jackson
Downing and locally popularlized by architects Samuel Sloan, John
Riddell and later Isaac Hobbs whose published plans for houses of
these types appeared regularly in Godey's Ladies Book. As such
the block is an important architectural precursor to the contemporary
American ideal of the single family house on a tree shaded quarter
ot in the suburbs, The continuing value of the houses, despite
changes in architectural style, attests to the transcendent power of
_ the suburban vision. On the cther hand, the variety created here-
single and double houses, later apartment conversions - is a powerful
arguement for the potential vitality of the complex suburb whidiis
all too often lacking in the conventional single class suburban de-
velopment. As such the 4000 block of Pine Street should be a pro-
foundly telling lesson for contemporary urban planners. - :
Finally, the block has been the home of many of Philadelphia's leading
\citizens as well as those who have made significant contributions
to the nei%hboring University Of Pennsylvania. Thus, L4OOi Pine Street
was from 1870 - 1880 the residence of Lutheran minister, the Rev-
erend Charles Krauth, a trustee of the University, and from 1868 -
1883 a professor of moral and mental science. He in turn sold the
house in 1880 to John B. Colahan, one of the founders of the Real Es-
! tate Trust Co. and a director of the Land Title and Trust Co. Otker
‘ faculty members have resided here, providing a significant link be=-
tween university and community - an important connection given the
University's expansion in the past decade.
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